


 

 
Public Works Committee Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 
  December 21, 2016 

City of Bethel, Alaska 
Public Works Committee Minutes 

December 21, 2016 Regular Meeting Bethel, Alaska 
I. CALL TO ORDER: 
A regular Public Works Committee Meeting was held on December 21, 2016 at the 
council chambers of the City Hall, Bethel, Alaska. The meeting was called to order at 
6:32 pm by Jennifer Dobson.  
 
II. ROLL CALL: 
Comprising a quorum of the committee, the following were present: Jennifer Dobson, 
Byron Maczynski, Scott Guinn, and Robert Champagne 
 
Excused absence(s): Joseph Klejka  
 
Also Present:  
Public Works Director, Bill Arnold 
Committee Recorder, Pauline Boratko 
 
III. PEOPLE TO BE HEARD: none 
 
IV. APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
MOVED BY: Scott Guinn Motion to approve the agenda. 
SECONDED BY: Robert Champagne 
VOTE ON 
MOTION 

Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

 
V. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
MOVED BY: Robert Champagne Motion to approve minutes for August 17, 

2016; September 21, 2016; October 19, 
2016; November 16, 2016.  

SECONDED BY: Byron Maczynski 

VOTE ON 
MOTION 

Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

 
VI. SPECIAL ORDER OF BUSINESS: 

 
VII.  UNFINISHED BUSINESS:  

A. Institutional Corridor Piped Water Supply Project: Project has been rerouted 
adding about 500 for feet of pipe around the Yukon Kuskokwim Health 
Corporation (YKHC), and are currently renegotiating. 

B. Sewer Lagoon- PER (Preliminary Engineering Report) and ER (Environmental 
Report) for Truck Dump site and other options: Still working on contract with 
the engineers, and still negotiating.  

C. Preventative maintenance logs and schedule for City trucks: tabled  



 

 
Public Works Committee Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 
  December 21, 2016 

D. Update on boardwalk/trail behind the college to hospital: The grant is good 
for 2 years. The Yukon Kuskokwim Health Corporation has a construction site 
that may interfere with the trail.  

E. Leveling of the Bethel Heights Water Treatment Plant Building: There has 
been 1 check in 5 months and it has moved about 6 inches, which concerns 
the committee.  

F. Recommendation for ordinance modification allowing composting toilets: 
Council Representative Bryon Maczynski reported that this ordinance was not 
approved by council. 

G. 2015 Water Quality Reports and customer concerns: Our water meets 
standards according to Alaska Rural Safe Water. Administration is currently 
looking into a company that could print and mail the water reports instead of 
having the city do it manually.  

VIII.  NEW BUSINESS: 
A. Opening a shop foreman position:  

MOVED BY: Scott Guinn Motion to recommend to council to open a 
vehicles and equipment foreman position  SECONDED BY: Byron Maczynski  

VOTE ON 
MOTION 

Motion carried by unanimous vote 

 
IX. DIRECTOR’S REPORT: Director of Public Works, Bill Arnold shared with the 

committee a capital project list he has come up with addressing all issues with 
the City’s buildings, equipment, and properties which are in need of 
replacement or repairs.   

 
X.       MEMBER COMMENTS: 

Robert Champagne- Welcome Bill.  
Jennifer Dobson- Welcome Aboard Bill. 
Scott Guinn- Welcome Bill. 
Byron Maczynski-Welcome Bill. 

 
XI. ADJOURNMENT: 
MOVED BY: Scott Guinn Motion to adjourn.  
SECONDED BY: Byron Maczynski 
VOTE ON 
MOTION 

Motion carried by unanimous vote 

 
With no further business, meeting adjourned at 7:22 pm 
 
APPROVED THIS ______ DAY OF _____________, 2016.  
 
 
__________________________    ________________________ 
Pauline R. Boratko      Jennifer Dobson 
Recorder of Minutes      Co-Chair      



MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE:         01.01.2017 
TO:   Peter Williams, Acting City Manager 
FROM:  Bill Arnold, Public Works Director 
SUBJECT:  Manager’s Report – 
 
Programs/Divisions 
 
Public Works Director:  
Capital Project List: see last page 
 
Hauled Utilities: For December, the new trucks have certainly helped 
considerably. Now all we need is to have the missing positions re-funded and have 
some new drivers added to the roster. Services this month were definitely 
troublesome due to the sudden cold snap which no one was prepared for, and 
caused problems with the trucks as well. With all that being said, the water crew 
has hauled nearly 3 million gallons of water with an average of 34 stops per driver 
per day. The honey crew has hauled approximately 2.5 million gallons of sewage 
to either the lift station or sewer lagoon, with an average of 29 stops per driver per 
day. And the garbage truck has hauled well over 4000 cubic yards of trash to the 
landfill, with an average of 50 stops per day. Due to the manpower crunch, and the 
foul weather, we have only had the back loader out once this month. And this truck 
has hauled about 100 cubic yards of trash from around the dumpster areas, to the 
landfill. 

                   HAPPY NEW YEAR!!!! 
 
Utility Maintenance:  For the month of December, we are still having to flush 
Bethel Heights gravity sewer mains do to the road crossings heaving. We had an 
issue at the Bethel Heights Water Treatment Plant on the 24th of Dec. which was 
caused by a valve malfunction, causing the discoloration of the water, we fixed the 
problem with the valve and began to flush the water system to remove the 
discoloration. The residents in City Sub. that had their water freeze, are all thawed 
out and their circulating pumps are on and working. We are still working on 
pulling the one bad pump at the Main lift station to get sent out to be fixed.  
 
Property Maintenance: 
Property Maintenance has been busy with a few problems.  A broken water line at 
BHWTP which has been fixed. At the Police station a main glycol line had a pin 



hole leak. System was drained and temporary heat was installed with help from 
Utilities Maintenance, very much appreciated. Fire suppression at Public Works 
failed and has been fixed by Frontier Fire. Shoveling snow and clearing entry ways 
is a daily duty. Paper work for finance is being hauled over to the senior centers 
shop, as time permits. 
 
Parks and Recreation: 
Has been closed for the winter season 
 
Road Maintenance: 
 Streets and Roads has been scarifying the roads with the grader to keep the roads 
from being as slippery. By doing this we cut grove in the ice for better traction, and 
also it helps to keep the roads smoother if the temp stay frozen.  
 Streets and Roads has also been sanding the intersections on the roads almost 
every day in order to keep the intersections on the roads from being to slippery. By 
doing the intersections it helps traffics in starting and stopping at the stop sighs at 
the intersection.  
 Streets and Roads had been digging graves when requested, but now the 
permafrost is now over 2 feet it takes a lot longer to dig. Bethel Utilities has been 
helping out in the winter, when there is permafrost, by drilling holes first with the 
drill, before we come in with the 420D backhoe to dig out the grave.        
 Streets and Roads, has been plowing out the snow berms with the loader in front 
of drive way, and at the bus stops shelters after scarifying or plowing snow with 
grader. After we are done with plowing parking lots with the loader, then we go to 
plowing snow berms left from the grader.  
 Streets and Roads drive the D8N dozer in from H-Marker Lake to the city shop to 
have some work done to it. We with planning to do this when the ices were thick 
enough to hold the D8N and now it is. We will drive it back when the work is done 
before the spring thaw.             
 
 
Vehicles and Equipment: This department was effected with the cold snap at the 
beginning of the month as well. Many of the systems on several trucks became 
frozen, and inoperable. Taking mechanics out to the field to service the vehicles. 
The addition of another mechanic has certainly helped with productivity, the only    
area that could still use some more help is a second heavy equipment mechanic.  
 
Transit System:  
The Bethel Transit System is appreciative of the Bethel City Council decision in 
approving the FY 18 Federal Transportation Grant.  We were in hopes that they 



would also approve the match money for the two new buses, which we badly need, 
but they didn’t.  The Department of Transportation, DOT, has said they would 
extend the grants for the new buses up to June 30,2017 and if need be they would 
consider extending it for another six months after that. I’m in hopes that the City 
Manager and City Council will consider this extension as it doesn’t cost the City 
anything to leave the Grant on the table for that period of time.  The purchase of 
new buses has been simplified with the State of Alaska partnering with the State of 
Washington who has approved RFP’s for them. 
 
We’re in need of hiring two Part-Time Drivers.  It is difficult to maintain the bus 
schedules when a driver is on leave. We have cancelled the Red Line since August 
because we don’t have a part-time driver to drive it.   
The roads have been very slick and I was thankful for the new studded tires that we 
put on Bus 439.  Buses 438 is using older studded tires and they will need to be 
replaced before next winter.  I have them on hand and will have them mounted this 
coming summer for next winter. 
 
Ridership has been down the past couple of months, Thanksgiving, Christmas, and 
warm weather may be the cause. People are busy with family activities, and during 
the warm weather people would rather walk than ride the bumpy bus.  Currently 
we’re averaging 70-90 rides per day.                                                                          
 
We have submitted the July, August, September and October Billing Summaries to 
DOT.  They’ve approved the July, August and September and are reviewing the 
October ones.  I’m working on the November Billing Summary.  With the holidays 
it’s difficult to get the information I need from the Finance Department because 
staff are gone.  But we’re working on it. 
 
Bethel Transit System goal for the FY 2017 will be to show a 20-25 percent 
increase in ridership / revenue.  I think we can do this by providing better and more 
dependable / reliable service for our passengers. 
 
Landfill / Recycle Center:  
 
The City of Bethel Landfill has been occasionally receiving some garbage from the 
local public. Landfill has been receiving cover soil. The garbage truck continues to 
collect garbage from dumpsters on selected routes. 
  
Staffing Issues/Concerns/Training:  
 



Public Works 
Capital Project Lists 

 

Bus Barn 

 Foundation is rotten and needs to be replaced 

 Floor and floor joints needs to be repaired or taken out 

City Hall 

 Roof has needed repairs since 2005 and no action has been taken up to this point 

Senior Center 

 Due to vandalism windows need to be repaired 

 Flooring needs to be replaced 

 Window shutters needs to be installed 

 Some siding needs to be replaced 

Public Works Boilers 

 Due to the age of the boilers they out lived their life span, and are leaking, and need to 

be replaced 

Public Works Transfer Switch 

 When the generator is running power feeds back to the transfer switch and is a major 

hazard, need to be replaced with an automatic transfer switch 

Streets and Roads 

 Removal of pavement on Ptarmigan, replace with gravel 

 1st Road Tundra Ridge removal of pavement, replace with gravel 

 5th Avenue, raise the road and top with gravel 

Piped Water and Sewer  

 Road crossings heaving, they need to be lowered 

 

 
 






	PW Committee Agenda Jan 2017 signed PDF
	PW Committee Minutes December 2016-draft
	Managers Report 1.1.2017
	bms  codes

